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Counsel to the Liquidating Debtors
UNITED STATES BANKRUPTCY COURT
DISTRICT OF NEW JERSEY
In re:

Chapter 11

Tri Harbor Holdings Corporation (f/k/a Aceto
Corporation), et al.,1

Case No. 19-13448 (VFP)
(Jointly Administered)

Liquidating Debtors.
APPLICATION FOR ENTRY OF STIPULATION AND CONSENT ORDER
BETWEEN KAVOD PHARMACEUTICALS LLC AND THE UNITED STATES
PROVIDING FOR ALLOWANCE OF CERTAIN GOVERNMENTAL CLAIMS
AND AUTHORIZING ENTRY INTO CERTAIN RELATED AGREEMENTS
The above-captioned liquidating debtors (collectively, the “Liquidating Debtors”), by and
through their undersigned counsel, submit this application (the “Application”) in lieu of a motion
pursuant to D.N.J. LBR 9021-1(b) for entry of the Stipulation and Consent Order Between
Kavod Pharmaceuticals LLC and the United States Providing for Allowance of Certain
Governmental Claims and Authorizing Entry Into Certain Related Agreements (the “Stipulation

1

The Liquidating Debtors in these chapter 11 cases and the last four digits of each Debtor’s taxpayer identification
number are as follows: Tri Harbor Holdings Corporation (f/k/a Aceto Corporation) (0520); Tri Harbor Chemical
Holdings LLC (f/k/a Aceto Agricultural Chemicals LLC, f/k/a Aceto Agricultural Chemicals Corporation) (3948);
Tri Harbor Realty LLC (f/k/a Aceto Realty LLC) (7634); Kavod Pharmaceuticals LLC (f/k/a Rising
Pharmaceuticals, LLC, f/k/a Rising Pharmaceuticals, Inc.) (7959); Kavod Health LLC (f/k/a Rising Health, LLC)
(1562); Kavris Health LLC (f/k/a Acetris Health, LLC) (3236); KAVACK Pharmaceuticals LLC (f/k/a PACK
Pharmaceuticals, LLC) (2525); Arsynco, Inc. (7392); and Acci Realty Corp. (4433).
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and Consent Order”),2 substantially in the form submitted herewith, entered into by and between
(i) Kavod Pharmaceuticals LLC (f/k/a Rising Pharmaceuticals, LLC, f/k/a Rising
Pharmaceuticals, Inc.) (“Rising”), (ii) the United States Department of Justice, Antitrust Division
(the “DOJ Antitrust Division”), and (iii) the United States of America, acting through the Civil
Division of the United States Department of Justice and on behalf of the Office of Inspector
General (OIG-HHS) of the Department of Health and Human Services (HHS) (collectively, the
“DOJ Civil Division”). In support of this Application, the Liquidating Debtors respectfully state
as follows:
JURISDICTION, VENUE, AND STATUTORY PREDICATES
1.

This Court has jurisdiction over this Application pursuant to 28 U.S.C. §§ 157 and

1334 and the Standing Order of Reference to the Bankruptcy Court Under Title 11 of the United
States District Court for the District of New Jersey, entered on July 23, 1984 and amended on
September 18, 2012. Venue is proper in this District pursuant to 28 U.S.C. §§ 1408 and 1409.
This matter is a core proceeding pursuant to 28 U.S.C. § 157(b)(2).
2.

The statutory predicates for the relief sought herein are sections 105(a) of title 11

of the United States Code, 11 U.S.C. §§ 101, et. seq. (the “Bankruptcy Code”), and Rule 90211(b) of the Local Bankruptcy Rules of the United States Bankruptcy Court for the District of
New Jersey (the “Local Rules”).

2

Capitalized terms used but not otherwise defined herein shall have the meanings ascribed to them in the Stipulation
and Consent Order, HHS Settlement Agreement (as defined below), or the DPA (as defined below), as applicable.
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BACKGROUND
I.

General Background
3.

On February 19, 2019 (the “Petition Date”), each of the Liquidating Debtors filed

a voluntary petition for relief under chapter 11 of the Bankruptcy Code in this Court, thereby
commencing these chapter 11 cases (the “Chapter 11 Cases”).
4.

On February 27, 2019, the Office of the United States Trustee appointed an

Official Committee of Unsecured Creditors in the Chapter 11 Cases. See Notice of Appointment
of Official Committee of Unsecured Creditors [Doc. No. 80].
5.

Additional details regarding the Liquidating Debtors’ businesses and the facts and

circumstances surrounding the commencement of the Chapter 11 Cases is set forth in the
Declaration of Rebecca A. Roof in Support of First Day Relief [Doc. No. 19].
6.

During the course of the Chapter 11 Cases, the Court approved the sale of

substantially all of the Liquidating Debtors’ assets pursuant to (i) the Order (A) Authorizing and
Approving the Sale of Substantially All Assets Comprising the Debtors’ Pharma Business Free
and Clear of All Claims, Liens, Rights, Interests, and Encumbrances, (B) Authorizing and
Approving the Assumption and Assignment of Certain Executory Contracts and Unexpired
Leases Related Thereto, and (C) Granting Related Relief [Doc. No. 372], and (ii) the Order (A)
Authorizing and Approving the Sale of Substantially All Assets Comprising the Debtors’
Chemical Plus Business Free and Clear of All Claims, Liens, Rights, Interests, and
Encumbrances, (B) Authorizing the Debtors to Perform Their Obligations Under the Purchase
Agreement, (C) Authorizing and Approving the Assumption and Assignment of Certain Executory
Contracts and Unexpired Leases Related Thereto, and (D) Granting Related Relief [Doc. No.
429].
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On September 18, 2019, this Court entered an order (the “Confirmation Order”)

[Doc. No. 996] approving on a final basis the Second Modified Disclosure Statement for the
Second Modified Joint Plan of Liquidation of Aceto Corporation and Its Affiliated Debtors [Doc.
No. 758] (the “Disclosure Statement”) and confirming the Second Modified Joint Plan of
Liquidation of Aceto Corporation and Its Affiliated Debtors (the “Plan”) [Doc. No. 757]. The
Plan was declared effective as of October 1, 2019 at 12:01 a.m. (ET) (the “Effective Date”).
8.

Pursuant to the Plan and Confirmation Order, Steven S. Rogers, in his capacity as

the Plan Administrator (as defined in the Plan, the “Plan Administrator”), was appointed as of
the Effective Date as the sole officer, director and/or manager of each of the Liquidating Debtors
for the purpose of implementing the Plan and facilitating the orderly liquidation of the
Liquidating Debtors’ remaining assets for the benefit of the Liquidating Debtors’ creditors and
other parties in interest in the Chapter 11 Cases.
II.

The Governmental Claims Bar Date, FCA Claims and Antitrust Claims
9.

On May 9, 2019, this Court entered the Order (A) Establishing Deadlines to File

Proofs of Claim Against the Debtors, Including But Not Limited to Claims Arising Under Section
503(b)(9) of the Bankruptcy Code, (B) Approving the Form and Manner of Notice of the Bar
Dates, (C) Authorizing Publication of the Bar Dates, and (D) Granting Related Relief [Doc. No.
509] (the “Bar Date Order”), which established, inter alia, August 19, 2019 at 5:00 p.m. (ET)
(the “Governmental Bar Date”) as the deadline for all governmental units (as defined in section
101(27) of the Bankruptcy Code) that assert a claim (as defined in section 101(5) of the
Bankruptcy Code) against the Liquidating Debtors which arose or is deemed to have arisen prior
to the Petition Date, to file a proof of such claim in writing or electronically with the Liquidating
Debtors’ claims and noticing agent, Prime Clerk LLC (the “Claims Agent”) so that it is actually
received by the Claims Agent on or before the Governmental Bar Date.
-4-
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Thereafter, at the request of the parties, this Court entered certain stipulation and

consent orders that extended the Governmental Bar Date for, respectively, (i) the DOJ Civil
Division to September 3, 2019 at 5:00 p.m. (ET) [Doc. No. 868], and (ii) the DOJ Antitrust
Division to December 31, 2019 [Doc. Nos. 817, 938, 1019, 1093, 1153 and 1179].
11.

On August 28, 2019, the DOJ Civil Division filed (i) a proof of claim against

Aceto Corporation (k/n/a Tri Harbor Holdings Corporation) in an unliquidated amount asserting
a contingent general unsecured claim for alleged violations of the False Claims Act, 31 U.S.C.
§§ 3729-3733, which was assigned claim number 271 by the Claims Agent (“Claim No. 271”),
and (ii) a proof of claim against Rising in an unliquidated amount asserting a contingent general
unsecured claim for alleged violations of the False Claims Act, 31 U.S.C. §§ 3729-3733, which
was assigned claim number 272 by the Claims Agent (“Claim No. 272” and together with Claim
No. 271, the “FCA Claims”).3
12.

The attachment annexed to each of the FCA Claims states that the claims are

based on an investigation of alleged violations of the False Claims Act “involving the payment
and receipt of remuneration by the debtor through arrangements on price, supply, and allocation
of customers with other pharmaceutical manufacturers in return for arranging the sale of certain
generic drugs, which resulted in claims submitted to the Medicare and Medicaid programs.” See
FCA Claims, Attachment.
13.

In addition, since prior to the Petition Date, and continuing thereafter, the DOJ

Antitrust Division has engaged in an investigation to determine whether Rising and others
knowingly entered into and engaged in a conspiracy to suppress and eliminate competition by

3

The
FCA
Claims
are
available,
respectively,
at
https://cases.primeclerk.com/aceto/HomeDownloadPDF?id1=MTE4OTExNQ==&id2=MTQ5OTcyNQ==
(Claim
No.
271)
and
https://cases.primeclerk.com/aceto/Home-DownloadPDF?id1=MTE4OTExOA==&id2=MTQ5OTcyNw== (Claim
No. 272).
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agreeing to allocate customers for and to stabilize, maintain, and fix prices of benazepril HCTZ
in violation of the Sherman Antitrust Act, 15 U.S.C. § 1.
14.

As noted in the Disclosure Statement, on April 16, 2018, Rising received a Grand

Jury subpoena (the “DOJ Subpoena”) from the DOJ Antitrust Division. Rising was one of many
companies in the generic pharmaceutical industry to receive a subpoena from the DOJ relating to
its years-long investigation into the industry. As part of Rising’s response to the DOJ Subpoena,
Rising collected and produced documents responsive to the subpoena to the DOJ Antitrust
Division. See Disclosure Statement, p. 34.
15.

As a result of its investigation, the DOJ Antitrust Division informally asserted

certain claims against Rising under the Sherman Antitrust Act. However, in light of ongoing
settlement discussions between the parties that commenced prior to the Petition Date and the
consensual extension of the Governmental Bar Date, the DOJ Antitrust Division has, to date, not
filed any proof of claim against Rising.
THE PROPOSED STIPULATION AND CONSENT ORDER
16.

In order to avoid the potential delay, uncertainty, inconvenience, and expense of

protracted litigation of the FCA Claims, Rising and the DOJ Civil Division, through their
respective attorneys, have engaged in good faith settlement discussions and negotiations to
consensually resolve the FCA Claims and have agreed, subject to this Court’s approval, to
resolve the FCA Claims on the terms set forth in the settlement agreement (the “HHS Settlement
Agreement”) between Rising and the DOJ Civil Division, a copy of which is attached to the
Stipulation and Consent Order as Exhibit A.
17.

In addition, after lengthy and arm’s-length negotiations, Rising has agreed,

subject to this Court’s approval, to enter into a Deferred Prosecution Agreement (the “DPA”)
with the DOJ Antitrust Division, a copy of which is attached to the Stipulation and Consent
-6-
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Order as Exhibit B, in connection with a one-count criminal Information to be filed by the DOJ
Antitrust Division in the United States District Court for the Eastern District of Pennsylvania (the
“Information”) contemporaneously with the filing of this Application. The Information (the
form of which is attached to the DPA along with a related Statement of Facts) will charge Rising
with knowingly entering into and engaging in a conspiracy to suppress and eliminate competition
by agreeing to allocate customers for and to stabilize, maintain, and fix prices of benazepril
HCTZ in violation of the Sherman Antitrust Act, 15 U.S.C. § 1.
18.

The proposed Stipulation and Consent Order (a) authorizes Rising to enter into

the HHS Settlement Agreement and the DPA, (b) provides for a resolution of the FCA Claims
filed by the DOJ Civil Division pursuant to the terms of the HHS Settlement Agreement, and (c)
provides for allowance of certain claims of the DOJ Antitrust Division (together, the “Antitrust
Claims”) against Rising pursuant to the terms of the DPA, without any need for the DOJ
Antitrust Division to file proofs of claim in the Chapter 11 Cases on account of the Antitrust
Claims.
19.

The key terms of the proposed Stipulation and Consent Order are summarized as

follows:4
(i)

Rising shall be authorized to enter into the HHS Settlement Agreement,
the terms of which are approved, and the DPA and to perform any of its
obligations under each of those agreements.

(ii)

Claim No. 272 filed by the DOJ Civil Division against Rising shall be
allowed as a Class 3B General Unsecured Claim in the amount of
$1,105,141 (the “United States Allowed FCA Claim”) and shall be treated
equally with all other allowed Class 3B General Unsecured Claims under

4

This summary of the key terms of the Stipulation and Consent Order and the following summaries of the HHS
Settlement Agreement and the DPA in this Application are intended for informational purposes only. Parties in
interest should refer to the Stipulation and Consent Order and the annexed HHS Settlement Agreement and DPA in
their entirety for the full terms thereof. To the extent the summaries contained in this Application are in any manner
inconsistent with the terms of the Stipulation and Consent Order, the HHS Settlement Agreement and/or the DPA,
the terms of those documents shall govern in all respects.
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the Chapter 11 Plan and entitled to receive distributions on a pro rata basis
with all other allowed Class 3B General Unsecured Claims under the
Chapter 11 Plan. In the event that Rising’s Chapter 11 Case is converted to
a case under chapter 7 of the Bankruptcy Code, the United States Allowed
FCA Claim shall not be impacted;

20.

(iii)

Claim No. 271 filed by the DOJ Civil Division against Aceto Corporation
(k/n/a Tri Harbor Holdings Corporation) shall be deemed withdrawn and
expunged from the claims register maintained by the Claims Agent in the
Chapter 11 Cases;

(iv)

The DOJ Antitrust Division shall have (a) an allowed Class 3B General
Unsecured Claim in the amount of $438,066 (the “Allowed Restitution
Claim”), which shall be treated equally with and receive proportionately
the same pro rata distributions as are received by other holders of allowed
Class 3B General Unsecured Claims under the Chapter 11 Plan; and (b) an
allowed Class 4B Subordinated Claim in the amount of $1,500,000. (the
“Allowed Penalty Claim”), which shall be treated equally with and receive
proportionately the same pro rata distributions as may be received by other
holders of allowed Class 4B Subordinated Claims under the Chapter 11
Plan;

(v)

The Liquidating Debtors and/or the Plan Administrator, as applicable,
shall exercise reasonable best efforts to disburse any distributions on
account of the Allowed Restitution Claim to direct purchasers in
proportion to their purchases from Rising (based on information to be
provided by the DOJ Antitrust Division with respect to such allocation,
which may be relied upon by the Liquidating Debtors and/or the Plan
Administrator, as applicable). The DOJ Antitrust Division agrees to
cooperate with the Liquidating Debtors and/or the Plan Administrator, as
applicable, in connection with such efforts; and

(vi)

Distributions pursuant to the Chapter 11 Plan, if any, on account of the
Allowed Penalty Claim, shall be made payable to the United States
Treasury in accordance with instructions provided by the United States.

In addition to the resolution of the FCA Claims as described above and set forth

in the Stipulation and Consent Order, the key terms of the HHS Settlement Agreement are
summarized as follows:
(i)

Subject to the exceptions in Paragraph 4 (concerning excluded claims) of
the HHS Settlement Agreement, and in consideration for allowance of
Claim No. 272, on the Effective Date, the DOJ Civil Division releases
Rising, together with its predecessors, current and former parents, direct
and indirect affiliates, divisions, subsidiaries, successors, transferees,

-8-
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heirs, and assigns from any civil or administrative monetary claim the
United States has for the Covered Conduct under the False Claims Act, 31
U.S.C. §§ 3729-3733; the Civil Monetary Penalties Law, 42 U.S.C. §
1320a-7a; the Program Fraud Civil Remedies Act, 31 U.S.C. §§ 38013812; or the common law theories of payment by mistake, unjust
enrichment, and fraud;
(ii)

OIG-HHS expressly reserves all rights to institute, direct, or to maintain
any administrative action seeking exclusion against Rising and/or its
officers, directors, and employees from Medicare, Medicaid, and all other
Federal health care programs (as defined in 42 U.S.C. § 1320a-7b(f))
under 42 U.S.C. § 1320a-7(a) (mandatory exclusion), or 42 U.S.C. §
1320a-7(b) or 42 U.S.C. § 1320a-7a (permissive exclusion) based upon
the Covered Conduct;

(iii)

Notwithstanding the releases given in Paragraph 2 of the HHS Settlement
Agreement, or any other term thereof, all of the claims of the DOJ Civil
Division set forth in Paragraph 4 of the HHS Settlement Agreement are
specifically reserved and are not released by the HHS Settlement
Agreement;

(iv)

Nothing in the HHS Settlement Agreement shall be deemed to extend any
deadline for filing proofs of claim in the Chapter 11 Cases established by
the Bar Date Order;

(v)

Upon the Effective Date, Rising fully and finally releases the United
States, its agencies, officers, agents, employees, and servants, from any
claims (including attorney’s fees, costs, and expenses of every kind and
however denominated) that Rising has asserted, could have asserted, or
may assert in the future against the United States, and its agencies,
officers, agents, employees, and servants related to the Covered Conduct
and the United States’ investigation and prosecution thereof;

(vi)

The United States Allowed FCA Claim shall not be decreased as a result
of the denial of claims for payment now being withheld from payment by
any Medicare or TRICARE contractor (e.g., Medicare Administrative
Contractor, fiscal intermediary, carrier) or any state payer, related to the
Covered Conduct; and Rising agrees not to resubmit to any Medicare or
TRICARE contractor or any state payer any previously denied claims
related to the Covered Conduct, agrees not to appeal any such denials of
claims, and agrees to withdraw any such pending appeals;

(vii)

Rising shall not charge any Unallowable Costs directly or indirectly to any
contracts with the United States or any State Medicaid program, or seek
payment for such Unallowable Costs through any cost report, cost
statement, information statement, or payment request submitted by Rising

-9-
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or any of its subsidiaries or affiliates to the Medicare, Medicaid,
TRICARE, FEHBP or VA Programs;
(viii) To the extent Rising’s obligations under Paragraph 9(c) of the HHS
Settlement Agreement have not been previously satisfied, Rising agrees,
within 90 days of the Effective Date of the HHS Settlement Agreement, to
identify to applicable Medicare, TRICARE or VA fiscal intermediaries,
carriers, and/or contractors, and Medicaid and FEHBP fiscal agents, any
Unallowable Costs included in payments previously sought from the
United States, or any State Medicaid program, and shall request, and
agree, that such cost reports, cost statements, information reports, or
payment requests, even if already settled, be adjusted to account for the
effect of the inclusion of the Unallowable Costs; and
(ix)

21.

Rising agrees to cooperate fully and truthfully with the United States’
investigation of individuals and entities not released in the HHS
Settlement Agreement as set forth in Paragraph 10 thereof.

In addition to allowance of the Allowed Restitution Claim and the Allowed

Penalty Claim for the DOJ Antitrust Division as described above and set forth in the Stipulation
and Consent Order, the key terms of the DPA are summarized as follows:
(i)

Rising acknowledges and agrees that the United States will file the
Information in the United States District Court for the Eastern District of
Pennsylvania and knowingly waives certain rights in connection therewith
as set forth in the DPA;

(ii)

The United States agrees to defer prosecution of Rising for the conduct set
forth in the Statement of Facts attached to the DPA pursuant to the terms
and conditions described in the DPA during the Term of the Agreement
(as defined in the DPA);

(iii)

Rising admits, accepts, and acknowledges that it is responsible under
United States law for the acts of its employees, including high-level
personnel, as charged in the Information and as set forth in the Statement
of Facts and that the allegations in the Information and the facts set forth
in the Statement of Facts are true and accurate;

(iv)

This DPA is effective for a period beginning on the date on which the
Information is filed and ending three (3) years from that date, or the date
on which this Court enters a final decree closing the Chapter 11 Cases of
Rising, Kavod Health LLC (f/k/a Rising Health, LLC), Kavris Health LLC
(f/k/a Acetris Health, LLC), and KAVACK Pharmaceuticals LLC (f/k/a
PACK Pharmaceuticals, LLC, whichever comes first (the “Term of the
Agreement”);
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(v)

Until the earlier of (a) the date upon which all investigations and
prosecutions, whether of former employees of Rising or other individuals
or entities, arising out of the conduct described in the DPA are concluded,
or (b) the expiration of the Term of the Agreement, Rising shall cooperate
fully and truthfully with the United States in the current federal
investigation of violations of federal antitrust and related criminal laws
involving the production or sale in the United States of Benazepril HCTZ
or other generic drugs, and any Federal Proceeding as (as defined in the
DPA)5;

(vi)

The Plan Administrator will preserve all documents consistent with the
terms of the Chapter 11 Plan, including those responsive to the pending
subpoena of the Antitrust Division;

(vii)

Except as provided in the DPA (including, without limitation, Paragraphs
15(b)-(c) of the DPA), the United States agrees that it will not bring
criminal charges against Rising for any act or offense committed before
the date of signature of the DPA, in furtherance of an antitrust conspiracy
involving the production or sale in the United States of Benazepril HCTZ;
and

(viii) The United States agrees that if Rising fully complies with all obligations
under the DPA, the United States will not continue the criminal
prosecution of Rising described in Paragraph 1 of the DPA and, at the
conclusion of the Term of the Agreement, the DPA shall expire. Within
thirty (30) days of the DPA’s expiration, the United States shall seek
dismissal with prejudice of the Information.
RELIEF REQUESTED AND BASIS THEREFOR
22.

By this Application, pursuant to Local Rule 9021-1(b), the Liquidating Debtors

seek entry of the Stipulation and Consent Order, substantially in the form submitted herewith.
23.

Pursuant to section 5.09(c)(ii) of the Plan and section 2.1(c)(ii) of the Plan

Administrator Agreement, the Plan Administrator, on behalf of the Liquidating Debtors, is
authorized to administer, reconcile, object to, and settle or otherwise litigate to resolution all
Claims (as defined in the Plan) against the Liquidating Debtors, subject to the rights of the
Oversight Committee (as defined in the Plan) as set forth in the Plan and the Plan Administrator
Agreement.
5

The specifics of Rising’s cooperation obligations are set forth in paragraphs 7 and 8 of the DPA.
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The Liquidating Debtors respectfully submit that Rising’s entry into the HHS

Settlement Agreement and the DPA and the resolution of the FCA Claims and the Antitrust
Claims, as provided for in the HHS Settlement Agreement and the DPA and set forth in the
Stipulation and Consent Order, is a reasonable exercise of the their business judgment, is in the
best interests of the Liquidating Debtors’ estates, and should be approved by this Court.6
25.

In addition, under section 5.14(a)(ii) of the Plan, the Plan Administrator is

required to seek the reasonable consent of the Oversight Committee (as defined in the Plan), such
consent not to be unreasonably withheld, to the settlement or resolution of any Claim to the
extent the Plan Administrator proposes a settlement or resolution thereof providing for an Allowed
Claim in the amount of $500,000 and above.

26.

Given that, among other things, the HHS Settlement Agreement and the DPA

involve settlements of Claims in excess of $500,000, the Plan Administrator, on behalf of the
Liquidating Debtors, has consulted with and obtained the Oversight Committee’s consent to the
proposed settlements of the FCA Claims and the Antitrust Claims, as provided for in the HHS
Settlement Agreement and the DPA and set forth in the Stipulation and Consent Order.
27.

Accordingly, the Liquidating Debtors respectfully request that the Court approve

and enter the Stipulation and Consent Order pursuant to Local Rule 9021-1(b).
NOTICE
28.

Notice of this Application has been given to (i) the Office of the United States

Trustee for the District of New Jersey; (ii) Porzio, Bromberg & Newman, P.C., c/o Warren J.
Martin, Jr., Esq., Robert M. Schechter, Esq., and Rachel A. Parisi, Esq., as counsel to the

6

Pursuant to section 7.02 of the Plan, the Plan Administrator is authorized to settle or compromise any Disputed
Claim without any further notice to or action, order, or approval by this Court. See Plan § 7.02. However, the
Liquidating Debtors nevertheless seek approval of the claim settlements embodied in the HHS Settlement
Agreement and the DPA in an abundance of caution.
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Oversight Committee; and (iii) all parties that have requested to receive notice pursuant to
Bankruptcy Rule 2002. In light of the nature of the relief requested herein, the Liquidating
Debtors respectfully submit that no other or further notice is required.
CONCLUSION
WHEREFORE, the Liquidating Debtors respectfully request that this Court: (a) enter
the Stipulation and Consent Order, substantially in the form submitted herewith, granting the
relief requested herein; and (b) grant the Liquidating Debtors such other and further relief as the
Court deems just and proper.
Dated: December 3, 2019

Respectfully submitted,
LOWENSTEIN SANDLER LLP
/s/ Michael S. Etkin
Michael S. Etkin, Esq.
Wojciech F. Jung, Esq.
Michael Savetsky, Esq.
Philip J. Gross, Esq.
One Lowenstein Drive
Roseland, New Jersey 07068
(973) 597-2500 (Telephone)
(973) 597-2400 (Facsimile)
metkin@lowenstein.com
wjung@lowenstein.com
msavetsky@lowenstein.com
pgross@lowenstein.com

Counsel to the Liquidating Debtors
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DISTRICT OF NEW JERSEY
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LOWENSTEIN SANDLER LLP
Michael S. Etkin, Esq.
Wojciech F. Jung, Esq.
Michael Savetsky, Esq.
Philip J. Gross, Esq.
One Lowenstein Drive
Roseland, New Jersey 07068
(973) 597-2500 (Telephone)
(973) 597-2400 (Facsimile)
Counsel to the Liquidating Debtors
In re:

Chapter 11

Tri Harbor Holdings Corporation (f/k/a Aceto
Corporation), et al.,1

Case No. 19-13448 (VFP)
(Jointly Administered)

Liquidating Debtors.
STIPULATION AND CONSENT ORDER BETWEEN KAVOD
PHARMACEUTICALS LLC AND THE UNITED STATES PROVIDING
FOR ALLOWANCE OF CERTAIN GOVERNMENTAL CLAIMS AND
AUTHORIZING ENTRY INTO CERTAIN RELATED AGREEMENTS
The relief set forth on the following pages, numbered two (2) through and including nine
(9), is hereby ORDERED.

1

The Liquidating Debtors in these chapter 11 cases and the last four digits of each Debtor’s taxpayer identification
number are as follows: Tri Harbor Holdings Corporation (f/k/a Aceto Corporation) (0520); Tri Harbor Chemical
Holdings LLC (f/k/a Aceto Agricultural Chemicals LLC, f/k/a Aceto Agricultural Chemicals Corporation) (3948); Tri
Harbor Realty LLC (f/k/a Aceto Realty LLC) (7634); Kavod Pharmaceuticals LLC (f/k/a Rising Pharmaceuticals,
LLC, f/k/a Rising Pharmaceuticals, Inc.) (7959); Kavod Health LLC (f/k/a Rising Health, LLC) (1562); Kavris Health
LLC (f/k/a Acetris Health, LLC) (3236); KAVACK Pharmaceuticals LLC (f/k/a PACK Pharmaceuticals, LLC)
(2525); Arsynco, Inc. (7392); and Acci Realty Corp. (4433).
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This stipulation and consent order (“Stipulation and Consent Order”) is entered into by and
between (i) Kavod Pharmaceuticals LLC (f/k/a Rising Pharmaceuticals, LLC, f/k/a Rising
Pharmaceuticals, Inc.) (“Rising”), (ii) the United States Department of Justice, Antitrust Division
(the “DOJ Antitrust Division”), and (iii) the United States of America, acting through the Civil
Division of the United States Department of Justice and on behalf of the Office of Inspector
General (OIG-HHS) of the Department of Health and Human Services (HHS) (collectively, the
“DOJ Civil Division”). Rising, the DOJ Antitrust Division, and the DOJ Civil Division are each
referred to herein as a “Party” and collectively as the “Parties”.
RECITALS
WHEREAS on February 19, 2019 (the “Petition Date”), Rising and eight (8) of its
affiliates (collectively, the “Liquidating Debtors”) filed voluntary petitions for relief pursuant to
chapter 11 of title 11 of the United States Code, 11 U.S.C. §§ 101 et seq. (the “Bankruptcy Code”),
in the United States Bankruptcy Court for the District of New Jersey (the “Bankruptcy Court”),
thereby commencing the above-captioned jointly administered bankruptcy cases (the “Chapter 11
Cases”);
WHEREAS, on April 10, 2019, the Bankruptcy Court entered an order [Doc. No. 372]
approving the sale of substantially all of Rising’s and its subsidiaries’ assets and such sale closed
on April 19, 2019 (the “Rising Sale Closing Date”). Since the Rising Sale Closing Date, Rising
has been in the process of liquidating its remaining assets in order to maximize recoveries for its
creditors and other parties in interest in the Chapter 11 Cases;
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WHEREAS on May 9, 2019, the Bankruptcy Court entered the Order (A) Establishing
Deadlines to File Proofs of Claim Against the Debtors, Including But Not Limited to Claims
Arising Under Section 503(b)(9) of the Bankruptcy Code, (B) Approving the Form and Manner of
Notice of the Bar Dates, (C) Authorizing Publication of the Bar Dates, and (D) Granting Related
Relief [Doc. No. 509] (the “Bar Date Order”), which established, inter alia, August 19, 2019 at
5:00 p.m. (ET) (the “Governmental Bar Date”) as the deadline for all governmental units (as
defined in section 101(27) of the Bankruptcy Code) that assert a claim (as defined in section 101(5)
of the Bankruptcy Code) against the Liquidating Debtors which arose or is deemed to have arisen
prior to the Petition Date, to file a proof of such claim in writing or electronically with the
Liquidating Debtors’ claims and noticing agent, Prime Clerk LLC (the “Claims Agent”) so that it
is actually received by the Claims Agent on or before the Governmental Bar Date;
WHEREAS, subsequent to entry of the Bar Date Order, the Bankruptcy Court entered
certain stipulation and consent orders that extended the Governmental Bar Date for, respectively,
(i) the DOJ Civil Division to September 3, 2019 at 5:00 p.m. (ET) [Doc. No. 868], and (ii) the DOJ
Antitrust Division to December 31, 2019 [Doc. Nos. 817, 938, 1019, 1093, 1153 and 1179].
WHEREAS, on August 28, 2019, the DOJ Civil Division filed (i) a proof of claim against
Aceto Corporation (k/n/a Tri Harbor Holdings Corporation) in an unliquidated amount asserting a
contingent general unsecured claim for alleged violations of the False Claims Act, 31 U.S.C. §§
3729-3733, which was assigned claim number 271 by the Claims Agent (“Claim No. 271”), and
(ii) a proof of claim against Rising in an unliquidated amount asserting a contingent general
unsecured claim for alleged violations of the False Claims Act, 31 U.S.C. §§ 3729-3733, which
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was assigned claim number 272 by the Claims Agent (“Claim No. 272” and together with Claim
No. 271, the “FCA Claims”);
WHEREAS, on September 18, 2019, the Bankruptcy Court entered an order (the
“Confirmation Order”) [Doc. No. 996] approving on a final basis the Second Modified Disclosure
Statement for the Second Modified Joint Plan of Liquidation of Aceto Corporation and Its
Affiliated Debtors [Doc. No. 758] and confirming the Second Modified Joint Plan of Liquidation
of Aceto Corporation and Its Affiliated Debtors (the “Chapter 11 Plan”) [Doc. No. 757], which
Chapter 11 Plan was declared effective as of October 1, 2019 at 12:01 a.m. (ET) (the “Effective
Date”);
WHEREAS, pursuant to the Chapter 11 Plan and Confirmation Order, Steven S. Rogers,
in his capacity as the Plan Administrator (as defined in the Chapter 11 Plan, the “Plan
Administrator”), was appointed as of the Effective Date as the sole officer, director and/or manager
of each of the Liquidating Debtors for the purpose of implementing the Chapter 11 Plan and
facilitating the orderly liquidation of the Liquidating Debtors’ remaining assets for the benefit of
the Liquidating Debtors’ creditors and other parties in interest in the Chapter 11 Cases;
WHEREAS, in order to avoid the potential delay, uncertainty, inconvenience, and expense
of protracted litigation of the FCA Claims, Rising and the DOJ Civil Division, through their
respective attorneys, have engaged in good faith settlement discussions and negotiations to
consensually resolve the FCA Claims and have agreed, subject to Bankruptcy Court approval, to
resolve the FCA Claims on the terms set forth in the settlement agreement (the “HHS Settlement
Agreement”) between Rising and the DOJ Civil Division attached hereto as Exhibit A;
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WHEREAS, since prior to the Petition Date, and continuing thereafter, the DOJ Antitrust
Division has engaged in an investigation to determine whether Rising and others conspired to
suppress and eliminate competition by allocating customers and fixing and maintaining prices in
violation of the Sherman Antitrust Act, 15 U.S.C. § 1;
WHEREAS, after lengthy and arm’s-length negotiations, Rising has agreed, subject to
Bankruptcy Court approval, to enter into a Deferred Prosecution Agreement (the “DPA”) with the
DOJ Antitrust Division, a copy of which is attached hereto as Exhibit B, in connection with a onecount criminal Information to be filed by the DOJ Antitrust Division in the United States District
Court for the Eastern District of Pennsylvania (the “Information”). The Information (the form of
which is attached to the DPA) will charge Rising with knowingly entering into and engaging in a
conspiracy to suppress and eliminate competition by agreeing to allocate customers for and to
stabilize, maintain, and fix prices of benazepril HCTZ in violation of the Sherman Antitrust Act,
15 U.S.C. § 1;
WHEREAS, pursuant to the DPA and in consideration of (a) the past and future
cooperation of Rising described in Paragraphs 7-8 of the DPA, and (b) the Allowed Restitution
Claim and the Allowed Penalty Claim described in Paragraphs 9-13 of the DPA, the DOJ Antitrust
Division agrees that any prosecution of Rising for the conduct set forth in the Statement of Facts
attached to the DPA as Attachment A shall be deferred for the Term of the Agreement (as defined
in the DPA) subject to the terms and conditions set forth in the DPA;
WHEREAS, pursuant to the DPA, the DOJ Antitrust Division further agrees that if Rising
fully complies with all obligations under the DPA, the DOJ Antitrust Division will not continue
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the criminal prosecution of Rising described in Paragraph 1 of the DPA and, at the conclusion of
the Term of the Agreement, the DPA shall expire and the DOJ Antitrust Division shall seek
dismissal with prejudice of the Information within thirty (30) days after such expiration; and
WHEREAS, pursuant to the DPA and subject to Bankruptcy Court approval thereof,
Rising has agreed to the allowance of certain claims of the DOJ Antitrust Division (together, the
“Antitrust Claims”) against Rising under the Chapter 11 Plan in the amounts and classifications
set forth herein without any need for the DOJ Antitrust Division to file proofs of claim in the
Chapter 11 Cases on account of the Antitrust Claims.
NOW, THEREFORE, THE PARTIES, INTENDING TO BE LEGALLY BOUND,
HEREBY STIPULATE AND AGREE, AND THE COURT HEREBY ORDERS, AS
FOLLOWS:
1.

Rising is hereby authorized to enter into the HHS Settlement Agreement, the terms

of which are hereby approved, and to perform any of its obligation thereunder. Upon execution of
the HHS Settlement Agreement by the parties thereto and the entry of this Stipulation and Consent
Order, (a) Claim No. 272 against Rising shall be allowed as a Class 3B General Unsecured Claim
in the amount of $1,105,141 and shall be treated equally with all other allowed Class 3B General
Unsecured Claims under the Chapter 11 Plan and entitled to receive distributions on a pro rata
basis with all other allowed Class 3B General Unsecured Claims under the Chapter 11 Plan (the
“United States Allowed FCA Claim”); and (b) Claim No. 271 against Aceto Corporation (k/n/a
Tri Harbor Holdings Corporation) shall be deemed withdrawn and expunged from the claims
register maintained by the Claims Agent in the Chapter 11 Cases. The Claims Agent is authorized
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to update the claims register to reflect allowance of Claim No. 272 in the amount set forth in this
paragraph and withdrawal and expungement of Claim No. 271.

As provided in the HHS

Settlement Agreement, in the event that Rising’s Chapter 11 Case is converted to a case under
chapter 7 of the Bankruptcy Code, the United States Allowed FCA Claim shall not be impacted.
2.

Rising is hereby authorized to enter into the DPA and perform any of its obligation

thereunder. Upon execution of the DPA by the parties thereto and the entry of this Stipulation and
Consent Order, the DOJ Antitrust Division shall have (a) an allowed Class 3B General Unsecured
Claim in the amount of $438,066 (the “Allowed Restitution Claim”), which shall be treated equally
with and receive proportionately the same pro rata distributions as are received by other holders
of allowed Class 3B General Unsecured Claims under the Chapter 11 Plan; and (b) an allowed
Class 4B Subordinated Claim in the amount of $1,500,000 (the “Allowed Penalty Claim”), which
shall be treated equally with and receive proportionately the same pro rata distributions as may be
received by other holders of allowed Class 4B Subordinated Claims under the Chapter 11 Plan.
The Claims Agent is authorized to update the claims register to reflect allowance of the Allowed
Restitution Claim and the Allowed Penalty Claim as set forth in this paragraph.
3.

The Liquidating Debtors and/or the Plan Administrator, as applicable, shall

exercise reasonable best efforts to disburse any distributions on account of the Allowed Restitution
Claim to direct purchasers in proportion to their purchases from Rising (based on information to
be provided by the DOJ Antitrust Division with respect to such allocation, which may be relied
upon by the Liquidating Debtors and/or the Plan Administrator, as applicable), with notice and
proof of payment to be given to the U.S. Attorney’s Office Financial Litigation Unit, at the
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following address or email address (or such other address or email address provided to the Plan
Administrator): U.S. Attorney’s Office for the Eastern District of Pennsylvania, Financial
Litigation Section, 615 Chestnut Street, Suite 1250, Philadelphia, PA 19106-4476; email:
joseph.minni@usdoj.gov. The DOJ Antitrust Division agrees to cooperate with the Liquidating
Debtors and/or the Plan Administrator, as applicable, in connection with such efforts. Any
distributions made on account of the Allowed Restitution Claim shall be final and shall not be
refunded.
4.

Distributions pursuant to the Chapter 11 Plan, if any, on account of the Allowed

Penalty Claim, shall be made payable to the United States Treasury in accordance with instructions
provided by the United States. Any distributions made on account of the Allowed Penalty Claim
shall be final and shall not be refunded.
5.

This Stipulation and Consent Order, the HHS Settlement Agreement and the DPA

contain the entire understanding of the Parties hereto with regard to the matters addressed herein,
and supersede all prior and contemporaneous discussions, negotiations, communications,
understandings, and agreements, whether oral or written, express or implied, between and among
the Parties hereto regarding the matters addressed herein.
6.

In the event of any inconsistency between the terms of this Stipulation and Consent

Order, the HHS Settlement Agreement and the DPA, the terms of the HHS Settlement Agreement
and the DPA, as applicable, shall govern.
7.

This Stipulation and Consent Order shall be effective immediately upon entry.

8.

This Stipulation and Consent Order may be signed in separate counterparts, the
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original signature pages, PDF (or other electronic format or image), or facsimile copies of which,
when assembled, shall constitute complete originals of this Stipulation and Consent Order.
9.

This Court shall retain exclusive jurisdiction to hear and determine all matters

related to or arising from the implementation, interpretation or enforcement of this Stipulation and
Consent Order.
[Remainder of page intentionally left blank – signatures follow]
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SETTLEMENT AGREEMENT
This Settlement Agreement (“Agreement”) is entered into among the United States of
America, acting through the United States Department of Justice and on behalf of the Office of
Inspector General (OIG-HHS) of the Department of Health and Human Services (HHS)
(collectively, the “United States”), and Kavod Pharmaceuticals LLC (f/k/a Rising
Pharmaceuticals, LLC, f/k/a Rising Pharmaceuticals, Inc.) (“Rising”) (hereinafter collectively
referred to as “the Parties”), through their authorized representatives.
RECITALS
A.

Rising is located in New Jersey and incorporated in Delaware. Rising previously

developed, marketed, distributed and sold certain finished dosage form generic drugs.
B.

On February 19, 2019, Rising and eight (8) of its affiliates (collectively, the

“Debtors”) filed voluntary petitions for relief under chapter 11 of title 11 of the United States
Code (the “Bankruptcy Code”) in the United States Bankruptcy Court for the District of New
Jersey (the “Bankruptcy Court”), commencing bankruptcy cases that are being jointly
administered under the caption In re Aceto Corporation, et al., Case No. 19-13448 (the “Chapter
11 Cases”).
C.

On April 10, 2019, the Bankruptcy Court entered an order approving the sale of

substantially all of Rising’s and its subsidiaries’ assets and such sale closed on April 19, 2019
(the “Rising Sale Closing Date”). Since the Rising Sale Closing Date, Rising has been in the
process of liquidating its remaining assets in order to maximize recoveries for its creditors and
other parties in interest in the Chapter 11 Cases.
D.

On September 18, 2019, the Bankruptcy Court entered an order (the

“Confirmation Order”) [Doc. No. 996] confirming the Second Modified Joint Plan of Liquidation
of Aceto Corporation and Its Affiliated Debtors (the “Chapter 11 Plan”) [Doc. No. 757].
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Pursuant to the Chapter 11 Plan and Confirmation Order, the Chapter 11 Plan became effective
on October 1, 2019 and Steven S. Rogers, in his capacity as the Plan Administrator (as defined in
the Chapter 11 Plan), was appointed as the sole officer, director and/or manager of each of the
Debtors, including Rising, to implement the provisions of the Chapter 11 Plan and to facilitate
the orderly and effective liquidation of the Debtors’ remaining assets and maximize the recovery
thereof.
E.

Subject to Bankruptcy Court approval, Rising has agreed to execute a Deferred

Prosecution Agreement (“DPA”) with the Antitrust Division of the United States Department of
Justice in connection with a one-count criminal Information in the United States District Court
for the Eastern District of Pennsylvania (“the Criminal Action”). The Information will charge
Rising with conspiring to suppress and eliminate competition by allocating customers and fixing
and maintaining prices in violation of the Sherman Antitrust Act, 15 U.S.C. § 1.
F.

The United States contends that Rising submitted or caused to be submitted

claims for payment to the Medicare Program, Title XVIII of the Social Security Act, 42 U.S.C.
§§ 1395-1395kkk-1 (“Medicare”), and the Medicaid Program, 42 U.S.C. §§ 1396-1396w-5
(“Medicaid”).
G.

The United States contends that it has certain civil claims against Rising arising

from (1) its payment and receipt of remuneration through arrangements on price, supply, and
allocation of customers of another pharmaceutical manufacturer for Drug A and Drug B
(previously disclosed to Rising) (the “Covered Drugs”) in return for arranging for the sale of the
Covered Drugs, in violation of the Anti-Kickback Statute, 42 U.S.C. § 1320a-7b(b)(1)(B); and
(2) its sale of Covered Drugs which resulted in claims submitted to the Medicare and Medicaid
programs during the following time periods: Drug A – 4/1/2014 through 9/30/2015; and Drug B
– 10/1/2013-9/30/2016. That conduct, which formed the basis for Proof of Claim No. 271
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against Aceto Corporation and Proof of Claim No. 272 against Rising filed by the United States
in the Chapter 11 Cases on or about August 28, 2019, is referred to below as the “Covered
Conduct.”
H.

With the exception of any admissions made by Rising in connection with the

DPA in the Criminal Action, this Agreement is neither an admission of liability by Rising nor a
concession by the United States that its claims are not well founded.
To avoid the delay, uncertainty, inconvenience, and expense of protracted litigation of the
above claims, and in consideration of the mutual promises and obligations of this Agreement, the
Parties agree and covenant as follows:
TERMS AND CONDITIONS
1.

Proof of Claim No. 272 filed by the United States in the Chapter 11 Cases against

Rising shall be allowed as a Class 3B General Unsecured Claim in the amount of $1,105,141.00
pursuant to the Chapter 11 Plan (the “United States Allowed FCA Claim”). The United States
Allowed FCA Claim shall be treated equally with all other allowed Class 3B General Unsecured
Claims under the Chapter 11 Plan and shall be entitled to receive distributions on a pro rata basis
with all other allowed Class 3B General Unsecured Claims under the Chapter 11 Plan. Proof of
Claim No. 271 filed by the United States in the Chapter 11 Cases against Aceto Corporation
shall be deemed withdrawn upon the Effective Date of the Agreement as defined hereafter in
Paragraph 22. In the event that Rising’s Chapter 11 Case is converted to a case under chapter 7
of the Bankruptcy Code, the United States Allowed FCA Claim shall not be impacted.
2.

Subject to the exceptions in Paragraph 4 (concerning excluded claims) below, and

in consideration for allowance of the United States Allowed FCA Claim, on the Effective Date,
the United States releases Rising, together with its predecessors, current and former parents,
direct and indirect affiliates, divisions, subsidiaries, successors, transferees, heirs, and assigns

-3-

Case 19-13448-VFP

Doc 1182-1 Filed 12/03/19 Entered 12/03/19 12:11:15
Stipulation and Consent Order Page 16 of 46

Desc

from any civil or administrative monetary claim the United States has for the Covered Conduct
under the False Claims Act, 31 U.S.C. §§ 3729-3733; the Civil Monetary Penalties Law, 42
U.S.C. § 1320a-7a; the Program Fraud Civil Remedies Act, 31 U.S.C. §§ 3801-3812; or the
common law theories of payment by mistake, unjust enrichment, and fraud.
3.

OIG-HHS expressly reserves all rights to institute, direct, or to maintain any

administrative action seeking exclusion against Rising and/or its officers, directors, and
employees from Medicare, Medicaid, and all other Federal health care programs (as defined in
42 U.S.C. § 1320a-7b(f)) under 42 U.S.C. § 1320a-7(a) (mandatory exclusion), or 42 U.S.C.
§ 1320a-7(b) or 42 U.S.C. § 1320a-7a (permissive exclusion) based upon the Covered Conduct.
4.

Notwithstanding the releases given in paragraph 2 of this Agreement, or any other

term of this Agreement, the following claims of the United States are specifically reserved and
are not released by this Agreement:
a.

Any liability arising under Title 26, U.S. Code (Internal Revenue Code);

b.

Any criminal liability;

c.

Except as explicitly stated in this Agreement, any administrative liability,
including mandatory or permissive exclusion from Federal health care
programs and the suspension and debarment rights of any federal agency;

d.

Any liability to the United States (or its agencies) for any conduct other
than the Covered Conduct;

e.

Any liability based upon obligations created by this Agreement;

f.

Any liability of individuals;

g.

Any liability for express or implied warranty claims or other claims for
defective or deficient products or services, including quality of goods and
services;
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Any liability for failure to deliver goods or services due; and

i.

Any liability for personal injury or property damage or for other

Desc

consequential damages arising from the Covered Conduct.
5.

Nothing herein, including but not limited to Paragraph 4 above, shall be deemed

to extend any deadline for filing proofs of claim in the Chapter 11 Cases established by the Order
(A) Establishing Deadlines to File Proofs of Claim Against the Debtors, Including But Not Limited to
Claims Arising Under Section 503(b)(9) of the Bankruptcy Code, (B) Approving the Form and
Manner of Notice of the Bar Dates, (C) Authorizing Publication of the Bar Dates, and (D) Granting
Related Relief [Docket No. 509] entered by the Bankruptcy Court on May 9, 2019.

6.

Except as provided in and relevant to the DPA, Rising waives and shall not assert

any defenses Rising may have to any criminal prosecution or administrative action relating to the
Covered Conduct that may be based in whole or in part on a contention that, under the Double
Jeopardy Clause in the Fifth Amendment of the Constitution, or under the Excessive Fines
Clause in the Eighth Amendment of the Constitution, this Agreement bars a remedy sought in
such criminal prosecution or administrative action.
7.

Upon the Effective Date, Rising fully and finally releases the United States, its

agencies, officers, agents, employees, and servants, from any claims (including attorney’s fees,
costs, and expenses of every kind and however denominated) that Rising has asserted, could
have asserted, or may assert in the future against the United States, and its agencies, officers,
agents, employees, and servants related to the Covered Conduct and the United States’
investigation and prosecution thereof.
8.

The United States Allowed FCA Claim shall not be decreased as a result of the

denial of claims for payment now being withheld from payment by any Medicare or TRICARE
contractor (e.g., Medicare Administrative Contractor, fiscal intermediary, carrier) or any state
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payer, related to the Covered Conduct; and Rising agrees not to resubmit to any Medicare or
TRICARE contractor or any state payer any previously denied claims related to the Covered
Conduct, agrees not to appeal any such denials of claims, and agrees to withdraw any such
pending appeals.
9.

Rising agrees to the following:
a.

Unallowable Costs Defined: All costs (as defined in the Federal

Acquisition Regulation, 48 C.F.R. § 31.205-47; and in Titles XVIII and XIX of the Social
Security Act, 42 U.S.C. §§ 1395-1395kkk-1 and 1396-1396w-5; and the regulations and official
program directives promulgated thereunder) incurred by or on behalf of Rising, its present or
former officers, directors, employees, shareholders, and agents in connection with:
(1)

the matters covered by this Agreement and the DPA;

(2)

the United States’ audit(s) and civil and any criminal investigation(s) of
the matters covered by this Agreement;

(3)

Rising’s investigation, defense, and corrective actions undertaken in
response to the United States’ audit(s) and civil and any criminal
investigation(s) in connection with the matters covered by this Agreement
(including attorney’s fees);

(4)

the negotiation and performance of this Agreement and the DPA; and

(5)

the distributions made to the United States pursuant to this Agreement and
the Chapter 11 Plan,

are unallowable costs for government contracting purposes and under the Medicare Program,
Medicaid Program, TRICARE Program, Federal Employees Health Benefits Program (FEHBP)
or any program of the VA (hereinafter referred to as “Unallowable Costs”).
b.

Future Treatment of Unallowable Costs: Unallowable Costs shall be

-6-
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separately determined and accounted for by Rising, and Rising shall not charge such
Unallowable Costs directly or indirectly to any contracts with the United States or any State
Medicaid program, or seek payment for such Unallowable Costs through any cost report, cost
statement, information statement, or payment request submitted by Rising or any of its
subsidiaries or affiliates to the Medicare, Medicaid, TRICARE, FEHBP or VA Programs.
c.

Treatment of Unallowable Costs Previously Submitted for Payment:

Rising further agrees that within 90 days of the Effective Date of this Agreement it shall identify
to applicable Medicare, TRICARE or VA fiscal intermediaries, carriers, and/or contractors, and
Medicaid and FEHBP fiscal agents, any Unallowable Costs (as defined in this Paragraph)
included in payments previously sought from the United States, or any State Medicaid program,
including, but not limited to, payments sought in any cost reports, cost statements, information
reports, or payment requests already submitted by Rising or any of its subsidiaries or affiliates,
and shall request, and agree, that such cost reports, cost statements, information reports, or
payment requests, even if already settled, be adjusted to account for the effect of the inclusion of
the Unallowable Costs. Rising agrees that the United States, at a minimum, shall be entitled to
recoup from Rising any overpayment plus applicable interest and penalties as a result of the
inclusion of such Unallowable Costs on previously-submitted cost reports, information reports,
cost statements, or requests for payment.
Any payments due after the adjustments have been made shall be paid to
the United States pursuant to the direction of the Department of Justice and/or the affected
agencies. The United States reserves its rights to disagree with any calculations submitted by
Rising or any of its subsidiaries or affiliates on the effect of inclusion of Unallowable Costs (as
defined in this Paragraph) on Rising or any of its subsidiaries or affiliates’ cost reports, cost
statements, or information reports.

-7-
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Nothing in this Agreement shall constitute a waiver of the rights of the

United States to audit, examine, or re-examine Rising’s books and records to determine that no
Unallowable Costs have been claimed in accordance with the provisions of this Paragraph.
10.

Rising agrees to cooperate fully and truthfully with the United States’

investigation of individuals and entities not released in this Agreement by providing the United
States with access, in electronic form, to the documents Rising previously produced to the
Antitrust Division of the United States Department of Justice in connection with its investigation
of Rising within ten days after the later of (a) receipt of the hard drive containing such
documents from the Antitrust Division of the United States Department of Justice and (b) the
Effective Date of this Agreement. Such access shall consist of delivering the hard drive
containing such documents via a standard overnight carrier to the United States for
copying/duplication, after which the United States agrees to return the hard drive to Rising
within a reasonable period of time via a standard overnight carrier.
11.

Nothing in this Agreement shall be deemed to amend or modify any of the terms

of (i) the Agreement for a Change of Ownership of a Medicare Coverage Gap Discount Program
(MCGDP) Agreement by and between Rising, Rising Pharma Holdings, Inc. (f/k/a Shore Suven
Pharma, Inc.) and the Centers for Medicare and Medicaid Services, dated as of May 7, 2019, or
(ii) the Stipulation for Assignment of National Drug Rebate Agreements Upon Change of
Ownership by and between Rising, Rising Pharma Holdings, Inc. (f/k/a Shore Suven Pharma,
Inc.) and the Centers for Medicare and Medicaid Services, dated as of June 24, 2019.
12.

This Agreement is intended to be for the benefit of the Parties only. The Parties

do not release any claims against any other person or entity, except to the extent provided for
elsewhere in this Agreement.

-8-
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Rising agrees that it waives and shall not seek payment for any of the health care

billings covered by this Agreement from any health care beneficiaries or their parents, sponsors,
legally responsible individuals, or third party payors based upon the claims defined as Covered
Conduct.
14.

Each Party shall bear its own legal and other costs incurred in connection with

this matter, including the preparation and performance of this Agreement.
15.

Each Party and signatory to this Agreement represents that it freely and

voluntarily enters in to this Agreement without any degree of duress or compulsion.
16.

This Agreement is governed by the laws of the United States. The jurisdiction

and venue for any dispute relating to this Agreement shall be in the Bankruptcy Court. Upon the
entry of a final decree closing the Chapter 11 Cases, jurisdiction and venue for any dispute
relating to this Agreement shall be in the United States District Court for the Eastern District of
Pennsylvania. For purposes of construing this Agreement, this Agreement shall be deemed to
have been drafted by all Parties to this Agreement and shall not, therefore, be construed against
any Party for that reason in any subsequent dispute.
17.

This Agreement constitutes the complete agreement between the Parties. This

Agreement may not be amended except by written consent of the Parties.
18.

The undersigned counsel represent and warrant that they are fully authorized to

execute this Agreement on behalf of the persons and entities indicated below.
19.

This Agreement may be executed in counterparts, each of which constitutes an

original and all of which constitute one and the same Agreement. Facsimiles and electronic
transmissions of signatures shall constitute acceptable, binding signatures for purposes of this
Agreement.
20.

This Agreement is binding on Rising’s successors, transferees, heirs, and assigns.

-9-
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All Parties consent to the United States’ disclosure of this Agreement, and

information about this Agreement, to the public.
22.

This Agreement shall be subject to the approval of the Bankruptcy Court and shall

become effective on the latest to occur of: (i) the date of signature of the last signatory to the
Agreement; and (ii) entry of an order of the Bankruptcy Court authorizing Rising’s entry into
this Agreement and the DPA (the “Effective Date”).

-10-
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UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT
EASTERN DISTRICT OF PENNSYLVANIA

UNITED STATES OF AMERICA

)

)
)
)

KAVOD PHARMACEUTICALS LLC (F/K/A
RISING PHARMACEUTICALS. LLC, F/K/A
RISING PHARMACEUTICALS. INC.).
Defendant.

Criminal No.:

Violation: l5 U.S.C. $ I
(conspiracy
in restraint oftrade) (1 count)
)
)
)
)
)

Filed:

DEFERRED PROSECUTION AGREEMENT
The United States Department of Justice, Antitrust Division ("United States") and Kavod
Pharmaceuticals

(''Rising"fa

LLC (f/Wa Rising Pharmaceuticals, LLC,

f,4<./a

Rising Pharmaceuticals, [nc.)

corporation organized and existing under the laws of Delaware, by and through its

undersigned representative, pursuant to authority granted by its board ofdirectors and subject to
an order authorizing Rising's entry into this agreement by the United States Bankruptcy Court
the District ofNew Jersey (the ''Bankruptcy Court") in Rising's chapter I

I bankruptcy

for

cases, Case

No. l9-13448 (VFP) (the "Chapter I I Cases"F--enter into this Defened Prosecution Agreement
(the "Agreement"), the terms and conditions of which are as follows:

Criminal Information and Acceptance of Responsibility

l.

Rising acknowledges and agrees that the United States will file the attached

one-count criminal Information in the United States District Court for the Eastem District

of

Pennsylvania. The Information will charge Rising with conspiring to suppress and eliminate
competition by allocating customers and fixing and maintaining prices in violation ofthe Sherman
Antitrust Act, l5 U.S.C. $

l.

In so doing, Rising:
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knowingly waives its right to indictment on these charges, as well as all

rights to a speedy trial pursuant to the Sixth Amendment to the United States Constitution, Title
18, United States Code, Section 3161, and Federal Rule

(b)

of Criminal Procedure 48(b); and

knowingly waives for the purposes ofthis Agreement and for the purposes

ofany charges by the United States arising out ofthe conduct described in the Statement ofFacts
(attached hereto as Attachment A and incorporated by reference into this Agreement) any objection

with respect to venue and consents to the filing ofthe Information,

as

provided under the terms of

this Agreement. in the United States District Court for the Eastem District of Pennsylvania. The
United States agrees to defer prosecution of Rising pursuant to the terms and conditions described
below.

2.

Rising admits, accepts, and acknowledges that it is responsible under United States

law for the acts of its employees, including high-level personnel, as charged in the Information
and as set forth in the Statement of Facts and that the allegations in the lnformation and the facts

set forth in the Statement

of

Facts are true and accurate. Should the United States pursue the

prosecution that is deferred by this Agreement, Rising agrees that

it will neither contest

the

admissibility of, nor contradict, any of the facts set forth in the Statement of Facts in any such
proceeding, including any guilty plea or sentencing proceeding. Neither this Agreement nor the

criminal Information is a final adjudication ofthe matters addressed in such documents, except as
to the restitution and penalty set forth in Paragraphs 9 through 13 below.
Parties to alld Scope

3.

ofthe Agreement

Rising is organized under the laws of Delaware and at all relevant times, was

headquartered in Saddle Brook, New Jersey. During the time set lorth in the Statement of Facts,

Rising was incorporated in Delaware. This Agreement binds Rising and the United States
Department of Justice, Antitrust

Division. lt specifically does not bind any other component of
2
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hw enforcement or

reguhtory agencies, or any other authorities.
Length of the Alreement

4.
Informatbn

This Agreement is effective for a period beginning on the date on which the
is

filed and ending three (3) years from that date, or the date on which the Banlauptcy

Court enters a ftral decree closing the Chapter
(f/[</a

I

I

Cases

of debtors Rising Kavod Heahh LLC

Rbing Heaht, LLC) ("Rising Heahh"), Kavris Heahh LLC (f/Ua Acetris Heahh, LLC)

('Acetrb"), and KAVACK Pharmaceuticals LLC (flWa PACK Pharmaceutbals, LLC) C'PACK,
and together

with Rbing, Rising Heahh, and Acetris, the '?.ising Pharma Debtors"), whichever

comes fnst (the'"Term

ofthe Agreement"). Rbing

determines, in its sole discretbrL that

Rbhg

agrees that in the event that the Unhed States

or any corporate affrliate has knowingly vblated any

provision of this Agreement, an extension or elitensbns of the Term of the Agreement, subject to
the

cbsing of the Chapter I I Cases of the Rising Pharma Debtors, may be imposed by the United

States, in its sole

discretbr! for up to a total additbnal time perird of

one year, without prejudice

to the United States' right to proceed as proviied in Paragraphs 19-22

bebw. Any extension of

the Term of the Agreement extends all terms of this Agreement for an equivalent perlcd.

5.

Notwithstanding any other term set forth herein, thb Agreement shall not become

effective unless and until it is executed by the parties or their respective representatives and Rising
is authorized to enter into this Agreement pursuant to an order

ofthe Bankruptcy Court.

Relevant Consideratbns

6.

The United States enters into thb Ageement based on the indivilual facs and

chcumstances of this case. Among the facts considered were the following: (a) Rising provlled
substantial, timely cooperatbn with the United States' investigatbn into

price-fxing bitt-rigging,

and market-alhcatbn conspiracies among generic drug manufacturers, including disclosing to the
3
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United States information regarding criminal antitrust viohtions invohing drugs other than what
is descrbed in the Information and the Statement of Facts; (b) Rising's cooperatbn has incfuded

facilitating the interviews of employees; (c) Rising agreed to cooperate in the United States'
ongoing investigation into criminal antitrust viohtbns among generic drug manufacturers; (d)

Rising's cooperatbn has allowed the United States to advance its investigatbn into criminal
antitrust conspiracies among other manufacturers of generic pharmaceuticals; (e) Rising has
agreed to take remedhl actions by proviJing restitution to the victims of the conduct described in

the Information and the Statement of Facts; (f) a convictbn (including a guilty plea) would

lkely

resuh in a substanthl dehy to the Chapter I I Cases , a concomitant dehy in the lquidation

of

Rising's remaining assets and disproportionate harm to Rising's creditors and other stakeholders l
and (g) this Agreement can ensure that Rising is heh accountable for the conduct described in the

Information and the Statement of Facts, while preserving the United States' ability to prosecute it

shoub breaches occur.
Cooperation Oblisations

7.

Until the earlier of (a) the date upon whbh all investigations and prosecutbns'

whether of former employees of Rising or other indiviluals or entities, arising out of the conduct
described in this Agreement are conclude4 or (b) the exphatbn of the Term

of the Agreement,

Rising shall cooperate fully and truthfully with the United States in the current federal
investigation of viohtions of federal antitrust and rehted criminal hws invofuing the product ion
or sale in the United states of Benazeptil HCTZ or other generic drugs, and any

litigatbn or other

proceedings arising or resuhing from such investigation to which the Unhed States is a party

(collectively 'Tederal Proceeding"). Federal Proceeding incfudes, but is not limited to, an
investigatbn, prosecutior! lhigation, or other proceeding regarding obstmction of, the making of
a fatse statement or dechration in, the commission of perjury or subomation of perjury in' the
4
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commission ofcontempt in, or consptacy to commit such offenses in, a Federal Proceeding. The

fuI, truthful,

and continuing cooperatbn of Rising

will include but not be limited to producing to

the United States all documents, informatbn, and other materials, wherever locate4 not protected
under the attomey-client privilege or the work-product doctrine, and with transhtions into English,

in the possessbrL custody, or conffol of Rising, that are requested by the United

States in

connection with any Federal Proceeding. The phn adminbtrator or other distribution agent (the

'?hn Adminbtrator")

appointed pursuant to the Second Modifred Joint Phn of Litluitlation

of

Aceto Corporation and its Aflilhted Debtors (as may be amended or modifre4 the 'Chapter I I

Phn") will preserve all documents consistent with the terms of the Chapter ll Phn, including
those responsive to a pending subpoena

8.

ofthe Department of Justbe, Antitrust Division.

ln addhion to the obligation described above, during the Term of the Agreement,

should Rising leam of credible evidence or allegations of criminal vbhtions of United States hw
by Rising or its subsiliaries or corporate affrliates, or by any former offtcers, directors, empbyees,

or agents, Rising shall promptly report such evidence or allegations to the United States. Any
informatbn that Rising thus dbcloses to the Unhed States will hkely include proprieary, fmancia I,

confdential, and competitive business informatbn. Publb disclosure of the information and
reports could discourage cooperation, impede pending or potential govemment investigations, and

thus undermine the United States' objectives in obtaining such reports. For these reasons, among
others, the

informatbn and reports and the contents thereofare intended to remain and shall remain

nonpublic, except as otherwise agreed to by the parties in writing, or except to the extent that the

United States determines in its sole discretion that disclosure wouh be in furtherance of
discharge of its duties and responsftrilities or is otherwise required by hw.

5
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Restitution and Penalw

9.

The United States and Rising agree that $1,543207 is the appropriate measure of

restitutbn Rising owes to victims of this offense. The United States agrees to offset the restitution
under this Agreement by $1,105,141, in light of the avaihbility of

civil

causes

of action and

Rising's separate agreement to provirle an allowed Chss 38 General Unsecured Chim under the
Chapter I

I

Phn in the amount of $1,105,141 to resolve rehted Fabe Chims Act chims by the

U.S. Department of Justice, Civil

Divbbn. The United

States and

Rbing agree that Rising's

resuhing restitution obligatbn under this Agreement is M38,066, which shall be alhwed asaChss

38 General Unsecured Chim under the Chapter

I

I Phn (the 'Alhwed

Restinmion

Chim").

The

United States will receive proportionately the same pro rata payments or distributions (including

with respect to the timing and type of payments or distributions) in respect of the Allowed
Restitutbn Chim as is received by other holders of allowed Chss 38 General Unsecured Chims
under the Chapter

ll

Phn. In light of the circumstances, including Rising's pending l[ui:lation,

the parties agree that this treatment is approprhte. The Rising Pharma Debtors, the LQuidating
Debtors (as defired in the Chapter I I Plan), and/or the Phn Administrator, as applicable, further
agree to exercise reasonable best efforts to disburse any distributions in connection whh the

Allowed Restitutbn Claim to direct purchasers in proportion to their puchases from Rising whh
notice and proof of payment to the U.S. Attomey's Offrce Financial Litigatbn
States agrees to cooperate whh the Rising Pharma Debtors, the

Liluilating

Unit.

The United

Debtors, and/or the

Phn Administrator, as applicable, in connectbn with these efforts. Any distributions on the
Allowed Restitution Chim are lmal and shall not be refunded.

10.

The United States and Rising agree that in addition to the Allowed Restitution

Chim set forth in Paragraph 9, Rising will also be subject to a monetary penahy in the amount of
Sl,500,000 to the United States Treasury, which shall be allowed under the Chapter I I Phn as a
6
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Chss 48 Subordinated Claim against the Rising Pharma Debtors (the "Allowed Penahy Chim").

The United States Treasury

will

receive proportbnately the same pro rata payments or

distributions (including with respectto the timing and type of payments or distributions) in respect

of the Allowed Penahy Chim as is received by other holders of albwed Chss 48 Subordinated
Chims against the Rising Pharma Debtors. The United States acknowledges that, pursuant to the
terms of the Chapter I I

Phq

any payment on the Allowed Penalty Claim

will

be subordinate to

the payment of Chss 38 Creneral Unsecured Chims, including the Allowed Restitntion Chim set

forth in Paragraph 9. The United States and Rising agree that the treatment of the Allowed Penahy

Chim set forth herein is appropriate given the facts and chcumstances of this case, including
Rising's cooperation, internal investigation, and remedhtion in this matter. Any dbtributions on
the

Albwed Penalty Chim are frnal
I

l.

The United States and Rising agree that under the applicable United

Sentencing Guilelines frne range
S3,61

and shall not be refunded.
States

for the charged offense, the monetary penalty would

be

I,105, which exceeds the Allowed Penalty Chim set out in Paragraph l0 above. The Unite d

States and Rising further agree that the

Allowed Penahy Chim is appropriate given the facts and

circumstances of this case, including Rising's cooperation and remediatbn in this matter and due

to Rising's fmancial condition and

12.

l(ulJation

in the context

ofthe Chapter I I

Cases.

For the avolJance of doubt, both the Rising Pharma Debtors' obligations to pay the

Allowed Restitutbn Chim and the Allowed Penalty Chim, and the Phn Administrator's
obligatbns to make distributbns

h

connection with the Allowed Restitution Chim and the

Allowed Penalty Chim, shall be consistent with, and pursuant to, the terms of the confnmed
Chapter I I Phn.

7
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Furthermore, nothing in this Agreement shall be deemed an agreement by the

United States that $ 1,500,000 is the maximum penalty that may be imposed
prosecutbn in the event of a breach

ofthb Agreement, and the United

h

any future

States b not precluded from

arguing in any future prosecution that the Court shouh impose a higher ftre, ahhough the United
States agrees that under those circumstances, it

will recommend to the Court that any amount paid

under this Agreement should be offset against any

judgnent. Rbing

fne the Court

imposes as part

of a future

acknowledges that no tax deductbn may be sough! and agrees that no tax

deductbn will be sought, in the United States or elsewhere in connectirn with the payment of any
part of this penahy.

14.

The United States and Rbing agree that thb Agreement and the treatment of the

Allowed Restitutbn Claim and the Allowed Penalty Chim set forth in Paragraphs 9-13 herein
shall be subject to the approval of the Bankuptcy Court and such Court's order authorizing
Rising's entry into thb Agreement. Rising is simuhaneously entering into a separate agreement

with the United States Department of Justice, Civil Division consistent whh paragraph 9 above,
which will atso be subject to approval by the Bankuptcy Court. The Unhed States and Rbing
further agree that, in the event that the Bankruptcy Court declines to authorize such payments or

Rising's entry into this Agreement, the United States may voirl this agreement in its entirety.
Conditiona

15.

I

Release from Liability

In retum for the full and tnrthful cooperation of Rbing, and compliance with the

other terms and condhbns of this Agreement:

(a)

The United States agrees that, except as proviled by this Agreement' it

will

not bring criminal charges against Rbing for any act or offense committed before the date of
signature of this Agreemeng in furtherance of an antitnrst conspiracy invohing the productbn or
sale in the Unhed States of Benazepril HCTZ.
8
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Faihre by Rising to comply fully with its cooperatbn obligatbns under

7-8 will void the United States' agreement in Paragraph 15(a), and Rising may

be

prosecuted criminally for any federalcrime of which the United States has knowledge.

(c)

The United States' agrcement in Paragraph l5(a) does not apply to

subomation of perjury (18 U.S.C.

justbe (18 U.S.C.

S 1503 e, seq. ),

$ 1622), false statements (18 U.S.C. $ l00l), obstructbn of

contempt (18 U.S.C. $$ 401-402), or consphacy to commit such

offenses. Its agreement in Paragraph l5(a) also does not apply to civil matters of any kind any

civil or criminal vbhtbn of the federal tax or securities hws or conspiracy to commit

such

offenses, or any crimes of violence.

Rehted Administrative Proce edinss

16.

Rising understands that it may be subject to additbnal actbn by state or federal

agencies other than the Unhed States Departrnent of Justice, Antitrust Division based upon this

Agreement, and that this Agreement in no way controh what actbn, if ann other agencies may

take. However, the United States agrees that, if requested, it will advise the approprhte offrcbls
of any governmental agency consitlering such action of the fact, manner, the extent of Rising's
cooperation as a matter for that agency to consitler before determining what action, if any, to take.
Deferred Prosecution

17.

In consileratbn of: (a) the past and future cooperation of Rising described

Paragraphs 7-8; and (b) the Allowed Restitution

Chim and the Allowed Penalty Chim

rn

set forth

in Paragraphs 9-13; the United States agrees that any prosecutbn of Rising for the conduct set
forth in the attached Statement of Facts be and hereby is deferred for the Term of the Agreement.

18.

The United States further agrees that if Rising fu[y complies with all obligations

under this Agreement, the United States
described in Paragaph

I an{

will not continue the criminal prosecutbn of

Rising

at the conclusion of the Term of the Agreement, this Agreement
9
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shall expire. within thirty (30) days of the Agreement's expiration, the United States shall seek
dismissal with prejudice of the criminal Informatbn described in Paragraph

l.

Breach

19. Il

during the Term of the Agreement, the United States determines, in its sole

discretiorq that Rising (a) commined any felony under United States federal hw subsequent to the
signing of this Agreement, (b) at any time proviJed to the United States in connection with this

Ageement deliberately false, incomplete, or misleading information, (c) fails to cooperate as set
forth in Paragraphs 7-8 of this Agreement or (d) otherwise breached the Agreement, Rbing shall
thereafter be subject to prosecutbn for any federal criminal viohtion of which the United States
has knowledge, incfuding the charges in the Information descrbed in Paragraph

pursued by the United States

l, which

may be

in the United States District Court for the Eastern District of

Pennsyfuanh or any other appropriate venue. Any such prosecutbn may be premised on

informatbn provlJed by Rbing, or its current or former offrcers, directors, employees, or agents.
Any such prosecution that b not time barred by the applicable statute of limitations on the date of
the signing of this Agreement may be commenced against Rising notwithstanding the expiration
of the stahrte of limitations between the signing of this Agreement and the expiration of the Term

of the Agreement plus one year. Thus, by signing thb Agreement, Rising agrees that the statute
of limitations with respect to any such prosecutbn that b not time barred on the date of the signing

ofthis Agreement shall

20.

be tolled

forthe Term of the Agreement pfus one year.

In the event that the United

States determines that

Rbing has breached

this

Agreemen! the United States agrees to provide Rising with written notice of such breach prior to
instituting any prosecution resuhing from such breach. Rising sha[ within thirty (30) days of
receipt of such notice, have the opportunity to respond to the United States in wrhing to exphin
the nature and circumstances of such breach, as well as the actions Rising has taken to address and

l0
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remediate the situatior! whbh explanation the United States shall consider in determining whether

to institute a prosec ution.

21.

In the event that the United

States determines that Rising has breached this

Agreement: (a) all statements made by or on behalf of Rising to the United States or to the Court,
incfuding the attached Statement of Fac6, and any testimony given by Rising before a grand jury,

a couG or any tribunal, or at any legislative hearings, whether prior or subsequent to this
Agreement, and any leads derived from such statements or testimony, shall be admissible in
evidence in any and all criminal proceedings brought by tlrc United States against Rising; and (b)

Rising shall not assert any chim under the Unhed States Constitutbn, Rule I l(f) of the Federal
Rules

ofCriminal Procedure, Ruh 410 ofthe Federal Rules of Evidence, or any other federal hw

or rule that statements made by or on behaf of Rising prbr or subsequent to this Agreement, or

any leads derived therefrom. shouh be suppressed. The decision whether the conduct or
statemen6 of any current dtector or empbyee, or any person acting on behatf of, or atthe direction

of Rising will be imputed to Rising for

the purpose of determining whether Rising has breached

any provision of this Agreement shall be in the sole dbcretion of the United States.

22.

Rising acknowledges that the Unhed States has made no

assurances, or promises conceming what sentence may be imposed by the Court

representations,

if Rising breaches

this Agreement and this matter proceeds to judgment. Rbing further acknowledges that any such
sentence is solely within the discretbn of the Court and that nothing in

thb Agreement binds or

restricts the Court in the exercise of such discretbn.

23.

On the date that the perird of deferred prosecutbn specifted in this Agreement

expires, Rising, by the Phn Administrator, will certifo to the United States that Rising has met its
disclosure obligations pursuant to this Ageement. Each certifrcation

ll

will

be deemed a materia I
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statement and representation by Rising to the executive branch of the Unhed States for purposes

of

18 U.S.C. g$

l00l and 1519, and it will

be deemed to have been made in the judicial district in

which this Agreement is filed.
Public Statements by.Rbtne

24.

Rising expressly a$ees that

it shall not, through present or future

attorneys,

offrcers, directors, employees, agents or any other person authorized to speak for Rising or hs
subsidiaries or affiliates, make any public statement,

in litigtion or otherwise, contradicting the

acceptance ofresponsibility by Rbing set forth above or any of the facts set forth in the Statement

of Facts. Any such contradictory statement shall subject to cure rights of Rbing descrrbed below,
constitute a breach of this Agreement and Rising thereafter shall be subject to prosecutbn as set

forth in this Agreement. The decbion whether any public statement by any such
contradicting a fact contained in the Statement of Facts

will

person

be imputed to Rising for the purpose

of determining whether it has breached this Agreement shall be at the sole discretion of the United

States. Ifthe Unhed States determines that a public statement by any such person contradicts in
whole

or in part any fact(s) set forth in the Statement of

Facts, the United States shall so notify

Rising and Rising may avoid abreach of this Ageement by publicly repudiating such statement(s)
within frve (5) business days after notification. Rbing shall be permitted to rabe defenses and to
assert affnrnative claims in other proceedings
Facts provitled that such defenses and

rehting to the matters set forth in the Statement of

chims do not contradict, in whole or in part, any fact(s) set

forth in the Statement of Facts. This paragraph does not apply to any statement made by any
former offrcer, director, employee, or agent of Rising in the course of any criminal, reguhtory, or

civil case initiated against such individual, unless such indivittua

25.

Rising agrees that

issues a press release

I

is speaking on behaf of Rising.

if it or any of its dtect or indirect subsitlhries, or its affiliate s

or holds any press conference in connection with this Agreemen! Rising
t2
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shall first consuh the United States to determine (a) whether the text of the release or proposed
statements at the press conference are true and accurate with respect to matters between the United
States and Rising; and (b) whether the United States has no objectbn to the release. Statements at

any press conference conceming this matter shall be consistent with such a press release.

Notice

26.

Any notice to the United States under this Agreement shall be given by personal

delivery, overnight delivery by a recognbed delivery servte, or registered or certified mail,
addressed

to Ryan Danks, 450

5th Street

NW, Suite I1300, Washingtoq D.C. 20530. Any notbe

to Rising under this Agreement shall be given by personal delivery' ovemight delivery by

a

recognized delivery service, or registered or certified mail, addressed to the Phn Adminbtrator
and to Rising's counse! Lowenstein Sandler LLP, One Lowenstein Drive, Rosehnd, New Jersey

07068. Auention: Michael Himmel and Michael s. Etkin. Notice shall be effective upon actual
receipt by the United States or Rbing, as applicable.
Comp lete Agreement

27.

This Agreement and its attachments set forth all the terms of this Deferred

Prosecution Agreement between Rising and the United States. No amendments, modifrcatbns or

additbns to this Agreement shall be valid unless they are in writing and signed by the United
States, the attomeys for

Rising and a duly authorized representative of Rising.

r3
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DATED:
Respectful ly submitted.

BY:

B
and Secretalv
Rising Pharmaceuticals, Inc.

Washington Criminal I Section

BY:

BY
Himmel
for fusing Pharmaceuticals. Inc.

John Elias
Danielle Garten
Trial Anomeys
Washington Criminal I Section
450 5s Sr. Nw, Suite 11300
Washingtoq D.C. 20530
(202) 307-6373

BY:

d/a,-1a.il,z>
William M. McSwain
United States Attomey
Eastem District of Pennsylvania
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Attachme nt A: Statement ofFacts
From in or about April 2014 and continuing until at least September 2015 (the "Relevant
Period"), Rising wasa corporatbn organized and existing under the hws of Dehware and had its

principal phce of business in Saddle Brook, New Jersey. During the Relevant Peri:rC, Rising was
a generic pharmaceutbal company engaged in the acquisition, licensing, production, marketing,

sale, and distribution

of generic pharmaceutical products, including Benazepril HCTZ,

was

engaged in the sale of that drug in the Unhed States, and employed more than 50, but fewer than
200 individua ls.

During the Relevant Perir:d, COMPANY A was a generic pharmaceutical company whh

its principal phce of business in New Jersey. COMPANY A was engaged in the acqubition,
licensing production, marketing sale, and dbtribution ofgeneric pharmaceutical drugs, including
Benazepril HCTZ. and was engaged in the sah of those drugs in the United States.
Benazepril HCTZ is a generic drug used in the treatment ofhypertension. During the
Relevant Peri:rd, Rising sold and distributed Benazepril HCTZ in tablet form in three dosage
strengths and sold approximately $15 million worth of Benazepril HCTZ in the United States.

During the Relevant Perird, Rising through its employees, including its high-hvel personnel

knowingly entered into and engaged in a conspiracy with COMPANY A and various individuats
to suppress and eliminate competition by agreeing to allocate customers for and to stabilize.
maintain, and

fx

prices of Benazepril HCTZ sold in the United States'

To further the conspiracy, Rising, through is employees, including high-level personnel,
engaged

in discussbns with co-conspirators involved in the productbn and sale of Benazepril

HCTZ. During these discussions,
stabilize, maintain, and

fx

agreements were reached

to allocate customers for and to

prices of Benazepr't HCTZ soH in the United States' The conspiracy

engaged in by Rbing and its co-conspirators wasaperse

l5

unhwful, and thus unreasonable, restraint
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I
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of the Sherman Act(15 U.S.C. $ l).

During the Rehvant Period, Rising and its coconspirators sold substantial quantities of Benazepril

HCTZ to customers affected by the offense charged herein hcated in various states in the Unied
States. In addition, payments from affected customers for Benazepril HCTZ sold by Rising and

its co-consptators traveled in interstate trade and commerce. During the Rehvant Perbd, the
activities of Rising and its co-consptators with respect to the sale of Benazepril HCTZ werewhhin
the flow of, and substantially affected interstate trade and commerce. Benazepril HCTZ was sold

by one or more of the conspirators to customers in this District and acts in furtherance of this
conspiracy were carried out wkhin the Eastem District of Pennsylvanh.

l6
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UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT
EASTERN DISTRICT OF PENNSYLVANIA

UNITED STATES OF AMERICA

KAVOD PHARMACEUTICALS LLC (F/K/A
RISING PHARMACEUTICALS, LLC, F,K/A
RISING PHARMACEUTICALS, INC.),
Def'endant.

)
) Criminal No.:
)
) Violation: l5 U.S.C. $ I
) (conspiracy in restraint oftrade)
)
) Filed:
)
)

(l

count)

INFORMATION
(rs u.s.c. $ 1)
The United States of Americ4 acting through its attomeys, charges that:

ONSPIRATORS

1.

KAVOD PHARMACEUTICALS LLC (F/KiA RISING PHARMACEUTICALS,

LLC, F/K/A RISING PHARMACEUTICALS, INC.) is hereby made

a defendant on the charges

contained in this Information.

2.

During the period covered by this Information, the defendant was a corporation

organized and existing under the laws of Delaware and with its principal place ofbusiness in
Saddle Brook, New Jersey.

3.

During the period covered by this Information, the defendant was a

pharmaceutical company engaged in the acquisition, licensing, production, marketing, sale, and

distribution of generic pharmaceutical drugs, including Benazepril HCTZ, and was engaged in
the sale of those drugs in the United States.
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4.

Benazepril HCTZ is a generic drug used in the treatment ofh)?ertension.

5.

During the period covered by this Information, COMPANY A was a

Desc

pharmaceutical company with its principal place of business in New Jersey. During the relevant

time period, COMPANY A was engaged in the acquisition, licensing, production, marketing,
sale, and distribution of generic pharmaceutical drugs, including Benazepril HCTZ, and was
engaged in the sale of those drugs in the United States.

6.

COMPANY A and various individuals, not made defendants in this Information,

participated as co-conspirators in the offenses charged herein and performed acts and made
statements in frrrtherance thereof.

7.

Whenever in this Information reference is made to any act, deed, or transaction

of

any corporation, the allegation means that the corporation engaged in the act, deed, or transaction
by or through its officers, directors, employees, agents, or other representatives while they were

actively engaged in the management, direction, control, or transaction of its business or affairs.
DESCRIPTION OF THE OFFENSE

8.

From at least as early as April 2014 and continuing until at least September 2015,

the exact dates being unknown to the United States, in the Eastem District ofPennsylvania and
elsewhere, the defendant and its co-conspirators knowingly entered into and engaged in a

conspiracy to suppress and eliminate competition by agreeing to allocate customers for and to
stabilize, maintain, and fix prices of Benazepril HCTZ sold in the United States. The conspiracy
engaged in by the defendant and its co-conspirators was

a

per se unla*firl, and thus

unreasonable, restraint of interstate trade and commerce in violation ofSection 1 ofthe Sherman

Act (ls U.S.C. $ 1).

2
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MEANS AND METHOD S OF THE CONSPIRACY

9.

For the purpose of forming and carrying out the charged conspiracy, the

defendant and its co-conspirators did those things that they conspired to do, including, among
other things:

(a)

discussed the allocation of and ageed to allocate customers located in the

United States;

O)

provided or received specific non-public prices paid by the allocated
customers to the existing supplier;

(c)

submitted offers to and declined requests to submit offers from customers

in accordance with the agreement reached;

(d)

sold and accepted payment for Benazepril HCTZ in the United States at

collusive and noncompetitive prices.
TRADE AND COMMERCE

10.

During the period covered by this Information, the defendant and its co-

conspirators sold substantial quantities of Benazepril HCTZ to customers affected by the offense
charged herein located in various states in the United States. In addition, payments from affected
customers for Benazepril HCTZ sold by the defendant and its co-conspirators traveled

in

interslate trade and commerce.
I

1.

During the period covered by this Information, the activities ofthe defendant and

its co-conspirators with respect to the sale of Benazepril HCTZ were within the flow of, and
substantially affected, interstate trade and commerce.

ALL IN VIOLATION OF TITLE

15,

UNITED STATES CODE, SECTION

j

1.
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Dated

IM

RYAN DANKS
Chief, Washingron Criminal Section I

Assistant Attomey General

A. POWERS
Deputy Assistant Attomey General
C

MATTHEW TANNENBAUM
JOHN ELIAS
DANIELLE GARTEN
Trial Attomeys,
Washinglon Criminal Section I
Antitrust Division
United States Department of Justice
450 5s Street. N.W., Suite I1300
Washington, D.C.20530
(202) 307-637f

2n
MARVIN N. PRICE. JR
Director of Criminal Enlbrcement
Antitrust Division
United States Department of Justice

QrUtru-

*d------

WILLIAMM. MCSWAIN
United States Attomey for the
Eastem District of Pennsylvania
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